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BASF Group 2011

Economic data

2011 2010 Change in %
Sales million € 73,497 63,873 15.1
Income from operations before depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) million € 11,993 11,131 7.7
Income from operations (EBIT) before special items million € 8,447 8,138 3.8
Income from operations (EBIT) million € 8,586 7,761 10.6
Income before taxes and minority interests million € 8,970 7,373 21.7
Net income million € 6,188 4,557 35.8
Earnings per share € 6.74 4.96 35.9
Adjusted earnings per share' € 6.26 5.73 9.2
Dividend per share € 2.50 2.20 13.6
Cash provided by operating activities million € 7,105 6,460 10.0
Additions to long-term assets? million € 3,646 5,304 (31.3)
Depreciation and amortization million € 3,407 3,370 1.1
Return on assets % 16.1 14.7 -
Return on equity after tax % 275 24.6 -
Research and development expenses million € 1,605 1,492 7.6
Environment and safety

2011 2010 Change in %
Emissions of greenhouse gases (CO, equivalents) million metric tons/year 25.8 25.74 0.4
Emissions to air (air pollutants)® thousand metric tons/year 33.8 33.9 (0.3)
Emissions of organic substances to water® thousand metric tons/year 24.3 26.1 (6.9)
Energy efficiency in production processes metric tons of sales product/MWh 0.63 0.61 2.1
Transportation accidents per 10,000 shipments 0.18 0.28 (35.7)
Number of environmental and safety audits 97 97 0
Operating costs for environmental protection facilities million € 850 729 16.6
Investments in environmental protection million € 190 122 55.7
Employees and society

2011 2010 Change in %
Employees as of December 31 111,141 109,140 1.8
Apprentices/trainees as of December 31 2,565 2,442 5.0
Personnel expenses million € 8,576 8,228 4.2
Donations and sponsorship million € 48.7 49.8 (2.2)
Annual bonus % of Group companies 93.7 92.9 0.8
Lost time injury rate per million working hours 1.9 2.0 (5.0
Health Performance Index® 0.86 - -

' For further information, see page 36
2 Including acquisitions
3 Excluding emissions from oil and gas production

4 Variation from Report 2010 (25.2) due to updated basis of calculation

5 For more information, see page 88



BASF’s segments

Chemicals

In the Chemicals segment, we supply
products to customers in the chemical,

Key data Chemicals (million €)

electronics, construction, textile, auto- 2011 2010 Change in %
motive, pharmaceutical and agricultural Sales 12,958 11,377 13.9
industries as well as many others. We
also ensure that other BASF segments EBITDA 3,188 3,000 6.3
| are supplied with chemicals for produ- Income from operations 2 441 2302 6.0
cing downstream products. Our portfolio before special items i ’ )
ranges from basic chemicals, glues and Income from operations
electronic chemicals for the semicon- EBIM P 2,442 2,310 5.7
ductor and solar cell industries, to
solvents and plasticizers, as well as
! starting materials for detergents, 3 1
plastics, textile fibers, paints and Sales (%)
coatings, and pharmaceuticals. — - —
1 Inorganics 1
2 Petrochemicals 68 €1 2’9 58
J— — million
3 Intermediates 21
2
Plastics
The Plastics segment includes a broad Key data Plastics (million €)
range of products, system solutions and -
services. We offer a number of enginee- 2011 2010 Change in %
ring plastics for the automotive and elec- Sales 10,990 9,830 11.8
trical industries as well as for use in
household appliances and sports and EBITDA 1,678 1,721 (2.5)
leisure products. Our styrenic foams are Income from operations
used as insulating materials in the before special items 1,203 1,284 63)
construction industry and in packaging. Income from operations
Our polyurethanes are extremely versa- ) 1,259 1,273 a.1)
tile: As soft foams, for example, they
improve car seats and mattresses, and
as rigid foams they increase the energy
efficiency of refrigerators.
Sales (%)
1 Performance Polymers 47 5 €1 0,990 1
2 Polyurethanes 53 million

Performance Products

-

Performance Products lend stability and
color to countless everyday items and
help to improve their application profile.
Our product portfolio includes vitamins
and food additives as well as ingredients
for pharmaceuticals and for hygiene,
home and personal care items. Other
Performance Products improve
processes in the paper industry, oil and
gas production, mining and water treat-
ment. They can also enhance the
efficiency of fuels and lubricants, the
effectiveness of adhesives and coatings,
and the stability of plastics.

Key data Performance Products (million €)

2011 2010 Changein %
Sales 15,697 12,288 27.7
EBITDA 2,312 2,162 6.9
Income from operatlons 1,727 1,554 111
before special items
Income from operations
(EBM 1,361 1,345 1.2
Sales (%)
- - 5
1 Dispersions & Pigments 22
2 Care Chemicals 33
-— — - €15,697
3 Nutrition & Health 12 4 million
4 Paper Chemicals 10
5 Performance Chemicals 23 3




Functional Solutions

In the Functional Solutions segment, we
bundle system solutions and innovative
products for specific sectors and custo-
mers, in particular for the automotive,
chemical and construction industries.
Our portfolio comprises automotive and
industrial catalysts, automotive and
industrial coatings and concrete admix-
tures as well as construction systems
such as tile adhesives and architectural
coatings.

Key data Functional Solutions (million €)

2011 2010 Change in %
Sales 11,361 9,703 171
EBITDA 921 861 7.0
Income from operatlons 559 467 19.7
before special items
Income from operations
EBM 427 457 (6.6)

3

Sales (%)
1 Catalysts
L - €11,361
2 Construction Chemicals 19 million 1
3 Coatings 25 2

Agricultural Solutions

Our crop protection products guard
against fungal diseases, insects and

Key data Agricultural Solutions (million €)

weeds and they increase quality and 2011 2010 Change in %
secure crop yields. Our research in plant Sales 4,165 4,033 3.3
biotechnology concentrates on plants
for greater efficiency in agriculture, EBITDA 981 938 46
healthier nutrition and for use as renew- Income from operations 810 749 8.1
able raw materials. before special items )
Research and development expenses, Income from operations
sales, earnings and all other data EB) 808 749 7.9
pertaining to BASF Plant Science are not
included in the Agricultural Solutions
segment; they are reported in Other.
1

Sales (%)

— — €4,165

1 Crop Protection 100 million

Oil & Gas

As the largest German producer of oil Key data Oil & Gas (million €)
and gas, we focus our exploration and -
production on oil- and gas-rich regions 2011 2010 Change in %
in Europe, North Africa, South America, Sales 12,051 10,791 11.7
Russia and the Caspian Sea region.
Together with our Russian partner EBITDA 2,616 2,977 (12.1)
Gazprom, we are active in the transport, Income from operations 2111 2430 (13.1)
storage and trading of natural gas in before special items ’ ’ )
Europe. Income from operations

EBM 2,111 2,334 9.6)

Net income 1,064 923 15.3

|
1
"; Sales (%)

1 Exploration & Production 26 €12,051

R bl ill

2 Natural Gas Trading 74 miffion
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Selected prizes and awards

World’s Most Admired Companies 2011

BASF honored as the most admired company in the chemical industry

The U.S. business magazine Fortune again ranked BASF as the most admired chemical
company in the world. BASF took first place in numerous categories, including product and
service quality, global competitiveness and quality of management.

Dow Jones Sustainability World Index

BASF shares listed in the most important sustainability index for past eleven years
BASF shares were again included in the Dow Jones Sustainability Index (DJSI World) in 2011.
The company received particular recognition for its product stewardship, environmental man-
agement systems and climate strategy, as well as its risk and crisis management.

Carbon Disclosure Project

Carbon Disclosure Leadership Index and Carbon Performance Leadership Index

In 2011, BASF again achieved the top ranking in the Materials & Energy sector in the Carbon Dis-
closure Leadership Index. BASF was also once again included in the Carbon Performance Lead-
ership Index, which assesses companies’ performance in managing climate change.

China Green Companies Top 100

BASF honored for its efforts

For the fourth time in succession, BASF was listed among the China Green Companies Top
100. This award recognizes companies that strengthen their competitiveness through long-
term commitment to environmental protection, society, innovation and corporate culture.

German Diversity Prize & Diversitylnc 25 Noteworthy Companies

BASF honored for commitment to diversity

BASF was honored in 2011 with the German Diversity Award as “Germany’s Most Diverse
Employer” in the category large-scale enterprise. The prize is awarded by Henkel, the busi-
ness consultancy McKinsey and the German business magazine Wirtschaftswoche. It hon-
ors employers, individuals and innovative projects that are committed to establishing a diverse
working culture. We have also gained international recognition for our diversity activities: BASF
was included in Diversitylnc’s 2011 ranking of “25 Noteworthy Companies for Diversity.”
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Forward-looking statements

This report contains forward-looking statements. These statements are based on current estimates and projections
of BASF management and currently available information. They are not guarantees of future performance, involve
certain risks and uncertainties that are difficult to predict, and are based upon assumptions as to future events that
may not be accurate. Many factors could cause the actual results, performance or achievements of BASF to be
materially different from those that may be expressed or implied by such statements. Such factors include those
discussed in the Opportunities and Risks Report from page 104 to 112. We do not assume any obligation to update
the forward-looking statements contained in this report.
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Responsible Care

OUR COMMITMENT TO SUSTAINABILITY

BASF supports the chemical industry’s global initiative
Responsible Care.

Further information

You can find this and other publications from BASF on the
internet at www.basf.com

You can also order the reports:

— by telephone: +49 621 60-99001
- on the internet: basf.com/mediaorders

Contact

General inquiries
Phone: +49 621 60-0

Corporate Media Relations
Jennifer Moore-Braun, Phone: +49 621 60-99123

Sustainability Center
Dr. Eckhard Koch, Phone: +49 621 60-78638

Investor Relations
Magdalena Moll, Phone: +49 621 60-48002

Internet
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BASF is the world’s leading chemical company:

The Chemical Company. Its portfolio ranges from
chemicals, plastics, performance products and crop
protection products to oil and gas.

We combine economic success, social responsibility
and environmental protection. Through science

and innovation we enable our customers in almost
all industries to meet the current and future needs

of society. Our products and system solutions
contribute to conserving resources, ensuring healthy
food and nutrition and helping to improve quality

of life.

We have summed up this contribution
in our corporate purpose:
We create chemistry for a sustainable future.

Report 2011

This integrated report documents BASF’s economic,
environmental and social performance in 2011. Using
specific examples, we illustrate how sustainability
contributes to BASF’s success and how we as a

company create value for employees, business partners,
shareholders, neighbors and the public.







sticky wet

We encounter innovations in chemistry every day — even where we don’t expect
to. They improve our quality of life. ACRESIN® is a smart chemical that stays
sticky in wet conditions - it doesn’t matter if you are at the beach, in the
swimming pool or in the shower. We are always improving our existing product
portfolio. In 2011, around 1,050 newly registered patents attested to this power
of innovation.

-+ For more on innovation, see page 16 onward and page 28 onward

LY



kids love chemistry

In our society, education is a key resource around the world for economic and

social progress. BASF is committed to introducing the next generation to the

world of chemistry. In 2011, the International Year of Chemistry, 54,813 young

people in 33 countries conducted experiments in BASF’s Kids’ Labs and Teens’

Labs, exploring the scientific phenomena of everyday life.

-+ For more on vocational training and career development, see page 84 onward; for more on education
projects, see page 89






warm houses

We at BASF have made it our business to develop ustal
industry. We offer our customers solutions that help t

R e

‘%

. . Ll —
g 5L

=

. |
e

- A,







With resources becoming scarcer and greenhouse gas emissions mcré '
nee ndamental change in how we approach mobility. Whether subw
- lle or airplane - sustainable transportation solutions are in dem
récogmzed this potential and offers, for example, numerous. =
s as a development partner for the automotive industry. W

*i' Q‘hon to the energy efficiency of tomorrow
e on mobility, see page 28 onward and page 50 onward
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About this report

Content and structure

The BASF Report combines our financial and sustainability
reporting and is addressed to readers interested in both
areas.

In addition to our integrated corporate report, we publish
further information about sustainability issues on the internet.
Links to this supplementary information are provided in each
chapter.

The information in the BASF Report 2011 also serves as a
progress report on BASF’s implementation of the ten principles
of the U.N. Global Compact and takes into consideration the
Blueprint for Corporate Sustainability Leadership — an action
plan initiated as part of the Global Compact LEAD platform. The
£® symbol indicates information that is relevant to the ten prin-
ciples and the Blueprint for Corporate Sustainability Leadership.
If the symbol appears at the end of a chapter, the entire content
of the chapter is relevant. The Global Compact Index on page
225 provides an overview of the topics. In addition to the tradi-
tional table of contents, “Topics at a glance” provides an over-
view of key topics such as business development, global chal-
lenges, innovations and other topics of central importance for
our business.

- The 2011 online report can be found at basf.com/report
-+ For more on sustainability, see basf.com/sustainability

-+ For more on the implementation of the Global Compact principles
and the Blueprint for Corporate Sustainability Leadership, see
basf.com/globalcompact_e

-+ For more on the Global Compact, Global Compact LEAD and
Blueprint for Corporate Sustainability Leadership, see
www.globalcompact.org and basf.com/gclead_e

-+ For information on topic selection and data collection, see page 224
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About this report BASF Report 2011

External audit and evaluation

Our reporting is audited by a third party. KPMG AG Wirtschafts-
prufungsgesellschaft has audited the BASF Group Consolidated
Financial Statements and the Management’s Analysis and has
approved them free of qualification. The audit of the Consoli-
dated Financial Statements including the Notes is based on the
audited financial statements of the BASF Group companies.

The audit covers financial information as well as statements
and figures pertaining to sustainability, and was conducted in
accordance with the relevant International Standard of Assur-
ance Engagements 3000, a standard for sustainability report-
ing. The additional content provided on the BASF internet sites
indicated in this report is not part of the information audited by
KPMG.

Our sustainability reporting has been oriented toward the
Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) framework since 2003. For the
BASF Report 2011, the GRI confirmed that the BASF Group’s
sustainability reporting fulfills the expanded GRI guideline 3.1
with the highest application level, A+.

-+ The Auditor’s report can be found on page 141

-+ The Assurance Report on sustainability information in the BASF
Report 2011 can be found at basf.com/sustainability_information

-+ The GRI Application Level Check Statement can be found
on page 226

\ Global
Reporting
Initiative™

Organizational
Stakeholder ~N

Overview

— BASF Report 2011 integrates our financial
and sustainability reporting
— HTML version of the report online contains additional
information and service features
— Further information on sustainability issues on the internet
— Report serves as a progress report for the
U.N. Global Compact

- Financial information as well as figures and statements
pertaining to sustainability in the Consolidated Financial
Statements and Management’s Analysis audited by
KPMG AG Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft

— Audit also in accordance with assurance
standards for sustainability reporting

— Level A+ in sustainability reporting confirmed
by Global Reporting Initiative
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6 To our shareholders

Letter from the Chairman of

the Board of Executive Directors BASF Report 2011

Letter from the Chairman of the Board of Executive Directors

Dear Shareholder,

One year ago, we predicted moderate global economic growth
and considerably higher volatility for 2011. This was the case:
Global gross domestic product grew by 2.7% in 2011, compared
with 3.9% in 2010, and growth in worldwide chemical produc-
tion (excluding pharmaceuticals) slowed from 9.3% to 4.8%. Our
business was particularly affected by events that were not fore-
seeable one year ago: The natural disaster in Japan left the world
shaken, and Germany saw a shift in its energy policy. In Libya,
we had to suspend our crude oil production from February to
October 2011. After the economic growth spurt of the first half
of the year, the national debt crisis in Europe contributed to a
considerable slowdown in the second half.

Nevertheless, we significantly surpassed the record levels of
2010 in sales and earnings, and again earned a high premium
on our cost of capital. The BASF team once again showed what
it is made of. For that, | would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to all employees.

We successfully implemented a whole range of important proj-
ectsin 2011. We started up the first leg of the Nord Stream pipe-
line and began operations following the second expansion
phase of our Verbund site in Nanjing. Cognis was successfully
integrated into BASF. We continue to optimize our portfolio —
with the inclusion of our styrenics business in the Styrolution
joint venture, as well as with a contract for the sale of our fertil-
izer business. Most importantly, we continued to lay the foun-
dation for future profitable growth by increasing expenditures
for research and development by 7.6% to €1.6 billion.

“We will integrate sustainability
more closely than ever into
our business. And innovation
is the key.”

Ambitious goals achieved

Despite significantly higher raw material prices, we were able to
increase earnings because we continuously strive to lower costs
and improve our productivity and internal processes. Our suc-
cessfully concluded excellence program, NEXT, shows our com-
mitment to operational excellence. We have now started the
STEP program, which is also expected to contribute around
€1 billion to earnings each year by the end of 2015. Together
with important customers, we have begun further joint develop-
ment projects. These demonstrate BASF’s power of innovation.
One example is the smart forvision concept car developed by
Daimler and BASF to make electric cars affordable, environmen-
tally friendly and safe.

In 2011, we paid a new record dividend of €2.20 to you, our
shareholders. At the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting at the end
of April 2012, we will propose a dividend increase of 13.6% to
€2.50, representing a dividend yield of 4.64%. This increase also
attests to BASF’s financial strength, which has improved once
again.

We expect overall global economic growth in 2012 to match the
level of the previous year. High raw material costs and uncer-
tainty in the financial markets hamper the outlook and make
forecasts difficult. Positive impetus for the chemical industry will
come from the emerging markets in particular. We aim to
increase sales volumes and exceed the record levels of sales
and income from operations that we posted in 2011. Crude oil
production in Libya, which we have already resumed, as well as
growing volumes in the chemicals businesses, will contribute to
the rise in earnings.
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Dividend

€2.50

(+13.6%)

We stand by our ambitious dividend policy and
propose a dividend of €2.50 per share — an increase
of 13.6% compared with the previous year.

Successful strategy updated

Margret Suckale and Michael Heinz joined the Board of Execu-
tive Directors in May 2011. The new Board team introduced the
updated “We create chemistry” strategy at the end of
November. It shows how we intend to take advantage of the
long-term opportunities presented by our markets to continue
to grow faster than chemical production and, above all, to
increase our profitability even further. We have also set ourselves
even more ambitious goals for environmental and climate pro-
tection. We are convinced that this course will take us in the
right direction, even in a volatile environment. Our focus on long-
term trends and our strengths will work to our advantage.

Rapid worldwide population growth demands new sustainable
solutions. This opens up opportunities for the chemical indus-
try, in particular — for example, in the areas of resources, envi-
ronment and climate; food and nutrition; and quality of life. That
is why we will integrate sustainability more closely than ever into
our business. And innovation is the key. In the future, our inno-
vative strength, our market knowledge and our customer rela-
tionships will need to be even more tightly interconnected. This
is how we will add value as one company and take advantage

Letter from the Chairman of
the Board of Executive Directors

of new growth opportunities — because no other chemical com-
pany has such a broad technology base and such comprehen-
sive access to customer industries.

Our success depends on how we interact with each other, with
our partners and with society. In this, we rely on the compe-
tence and dedication of each and every one of our employees.
We have defined values to guide our actions: We are creative,
open, responsible and entrepreneurial. Our values are integral
in enabling us to fulfill our corporate purpose: We create chem-
istry for a sustainable future.

I look forward to pursuing this path with you and thank you for
putting your trust in BASF.

Sincerely yours,

N

Dr. Kurt Bock
Chairman of the Board of Executive Directors of BASF SE

To our shareholders 7
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e Board of
Executive Directors
of BASF SE

Dr. Harald Schwager
51, with BASF for 24 years

- Oil & Gas

— Construction Chemicals
— Procurement

— Region Europe

utive Directors

Varg uckale
Industrial Relations Director
55, with BASF for 3 years

— Human Resources

— Engineering &
Maintenance

— Environment,
Health & Safety

- Verbund Site
Management Europe
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Dr.
Chief Financial Officer
52, with BASF for 23 years

- Finance

— Catalysts

— Corporate Controlling

— Corporate Audit

— Information Services &
Supply Chain Management

— Market & Business Development
North America

— Regional Functions North America
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47, with BASF for 26 years

— Dispersion & Pigments

— Care Chemicals

— Nutrition & Health

— Paper Chemicals

— Performance Chemicals

— Advanced Materials &
Systems Research

Dr. Kurt Bock

Chairman of the Board of
Executive Directors

53, with BASF for 21 years

— Legal, Taxes & Insurance

— Strategic Planning &
Controlling

— Communications &
Government Relations

— Global Executive Human
Resources

- Investor Relations

— Compliance

Board of Executive Directors

Dr. Martin Brudermiiller
Vice Chairman of the Board
of Executive Directors

50, with BASF for 24 years

— Performance Polymers

— Polyurethanes

— Market & Business
Development Asia Pacific

— Regional Functions &
Country Management
Asia Pacific
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Dr. Stefan Marcinowski
58, with BASF for 33 years

Dr. Andreas Kreimeyer
Research Executive Director
56, with BASF for 26 years

- Inorganics — Crop Protection

— Petrochemicals — Coatings

— Intermediates — BASF Plant Science
— Process Research & — Biological &

Effect Systems Research
— Region South America
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— BASF Future Business
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BASF on the capital market
Dividend increase, good credit ratings

After developing positively in the first half of 2011, stock
markets were increasingly characterized by uncertainty
in the second half of the year. The BASF share traded at
€53.89 at the end of 2011, 9.7% below its closing price
one year earlier.

We stand by our ambitious dividend policy and will
propose a dividend of €2.50 per share at the Annual
Shareholders’ Meeting - an increase of 13.6% compared
with the previous year. BASF has solid financing and good
credit ratings, especially compared with its competitors
in the chemical industry.

BASF share performance

Stock markets made significant gains in the first half of 2011 —
the BASF share reached a new all-time high of €69.40 — but
uncertainty increasingly began to dominate the markets in the
second half of the year. From the beginning of August, share
prices worldwide declined sharply. This was a result of the
further intensification of the national debt crises in Europe and
the United States as well as the financial markets’ lower growth

Change in value of an investment in BASF shares 2011
(with dividends reinvested, indexed)

BASF on the capital market BASF Report 2011

expectations for the world economy in 2012. The BASF share
was not able to escape this negative trend, and traded at €53.89
at the end of 2011, 9.7% below its closing price one year earlier.
Assuming that dividends were reinvested, BASF shares lost
6.7% of their value in 2011. The BASF stock thus outperformed
the German and European stock markets: Over the same
period, the DAX 30 index fell by 14.7% while the DJ EURO
STOXX 50 index lost 14.5%. In 2011, BASF shares also per-
formed better than the global industry indices DJ Chemicals and
MSCI World Chemicals, which shed 10.6% and 7.8% of their
value, respectively.

The assets of an investor who invested the equivalent of
€1,000 in BASF shares at the end of 2001 and reinvested the
dividends in additional BASF shares would have increased to
€3,734 by the end of 2011. This average annual return of 14.1%
places BASF shares substantially above the returns for the
DAX 30 (1.4%), EURO STOXX 50 (-2.2%) and MSCI World
Chemicals (7.2%).

130 130
120 120
110 110
100 100
90 90
80 80
70 70
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
=== BASF share -6.7% —— DAX30 -14.7% MSCI World Chemicals -7.8%
BASF on the capital market Dividend per share' (€ per share)
2.50

— Stock markets develop positively in first half of 2011,
second half increasingly marked by uncertainty

— BASF share outperforms the most important benchmark
and industry indices

— Proposed dividend of €2.50 per share; increase of 13.6%
compared with previous year

2.20

1.70
1.50

0.70 0.70

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

'Adjusted for two-for-one stock split conducted in the second quarter of 2008
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Long-term performance of BASF shares compared with indices
(average annual performance with dividends reinvested)

2006-2011  12.5%
2.2%)

(7.9%)

2.4%

2001-2011 14.1%
1.4%

2.2%)

7.2%

ee——
——

Il BASF share DAX 30 EURO STOXX MSCI World Chemicals
Dividend of €2.50 per share

At the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting, the Board of Executive
Directors and the Supervisory Board will propose a dividend
payment of €2.50 per share. We stand by our ambitious divi-
dend policy and plan to pay out around €2.3 billion to our share-
holders (based on the qualifying shares as of December 31,
2011). Based on the year-end share price for 2011, BASF shares
offer a high dividend yield of 4.64%. BASF is part of the DivDAX
share index, which contains the 15 companies with the highest
dividend yield in the DAX 30. We continue to aim to increase our
dividend each year, or at least maintain it at the previous year’s

level.

BASF on the capital market

Broad base of international shareholders

With over 400,000 shareholders, BASF is one of the largest
publicly owned companies with a high free float. An analysis of
the shareholder structure carried out in December 2011 showed
that, at nearly 15% of share capital, the United States and
Canada made up the largest regional group of institutional
investors. Institutional investors from Germany accounted for
11%. Shareholders from the United Kingdom and Ireland hold
around 12% of BASF shares, while institutional investors from
the rest of Europe hold a further 18% of capital. Approximately
27% of the company’s share capital is held by private investors,
most of whom are resident in Germany. BASF is therefore one
of the DAX 30 companies with the largest percentage of private
shareholders in Germany.

Employees becoming shareholders

In many countries, we offer share purchase programs to
encourage our employees to become BASF shareholders. In
2011, more than 19,600 employees (2010: 18,900) purchased
employee shares worth around €45 million (2010: €28 million).

-+ For more on employee share purchase programs, see page 86

Shareholder structure (by region)

Germany 38%

5
United States/Canada 15% 1
United Kingdom/Ireland 12%

Rest of Europe 18% 4
Rest of the world 4%
Unidentified 13% 3

M b b b

Percentage of BASF shares in important indices
as of December 31, 2011

DAX 30 9.6%
DJ Chemicals 7.2%
MSCI World Index 0.3%

To our shareholders 1 1
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BASF in key sustainability indices

For the eleventh year in succession, BASF has been included
in the world’s most important sustainability index, the Dow
Jones Sustainability World Index (DJSI World). We received par-
ticular recognition for our product stewardship, environmental
management and climate strategy as well as our risk and crisis
management. The DJSI World represents the top 10% of the
largest 2,500 companies in the Dow Jones Global Index based
on economic, environmental and social criteria.

Furthermore, the international investor group Carbon Dis-
closure Project has again selected BASF for inclusion in the
prestigious Carbon Disclosure Leadership Index (CDLI) and in
the Carbon Performance Leadership Index (CPLI). The CDLI
contains 52 companies that provide especially transparent and
extensive information about their carbon footprint. The CPLI
includes 29 companies based on their exemplary performance
in terms of climate change - for example, with regard to their
climate strategy, stakeholder communication and management
system as well as their reduction of greenhouse gas emissions.
The inclusion in both indices demonstrates that BASF is one of
the world’s leading companies when it comes to climate
protection. The Carbon Disclosure Project represents 551 insti-
tutional investors, with around $71 trillion in assets under
management.

-+ For more on the key sustainability indices, see
basf.com/sustainabilityindices

BASF on the capital market BASF Report 2011

Good credit ratings and solid financing

With “A+/A-1/outlook stable” from rating agency Standard &
Poor’'s and “A1/P-1/outlook stable” from Moody’s, BASF has
good credit ratings, especially in comparison with competitors
in the chemical industry.

At the end of 2011, the financial indebtedness of the BASF
Group was around €13 billion with liquid funds of approximately
€2 billion. The average maturity of our financial indebtedness
was 3.1 years. The company’s medium- to long-term debt
financing is based on corporate bonds with a balanced matu-
rity profile. For short-term debt financing, BASF has a commer-
cial paper program with an issuing volume of up to $12.5 billion.
As back-up for the commercial paper program, there are com-
mitted, broadly syndicated credit lines of €3 billion and $2.25 bil-
lion available; these are not being used at this time.

- For more on financial indebtedness and maturities, see the Notes
from page 186 onward

Analysts’ recommendations

Around thirty financial analysts regularly publish reports on
BASF. At the end of 2011, 50% of these analysts had a buy
rating for our shares (end of 2010: 73%) while 44% of analysts
recommended holding our shares (end of 2010: 21%), and 6%
had a sell rating (end of 2010: 6%). On December 31, 2011, the
average target share price according to analyst consensus
estimates was €60.43.

-+ Continuously updated consensus estimates on BASF are available
online at basf.com/share

BASF in sustainability indices

— Once again included in most important
sustainability indices

— DJSI World: particular recognition for our product
stewardship, environmental management and climate
strategy as well as risk and crisis management

— CDLI and CPLI: inclusion in the important sustainability
indices shows that BASF is one of the leading companies
worldwide when it comes to climate protection

Solid financing

- Financial indebtedness of the BASF Group around

€13 billion at year-end 2011; average maturity of 3.1 years
— Commercial paper program with an issuing volume

of up to $12.5 billion
— Committed, unused back-up lines of €3 billion

and $2.25 billion
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Close dialog with the capital markets

Our corporate strategy aims to create long-term value. We sup-
port this strategy through regular and open communication with
all capital market participants. To keep institutional investors and
rating agencies informed, we host numerous one-on-one meet-
ings and roadshows worldwide. We also hold information events
to give private investors insight into BASF.

At an investor day in London at the end of November, we
introduced our updated “We create chemistry” strategy and
showed the opportunities that will open up for the chemical
industry as a result of the challenges of the future, such as the
growing world population. We want to take advantage of these
opportunities in order to reach our ambitious growth targets.

-+ For more on our growth targets, see page 18

To delve more deeply into certain topics, we also held round-
table talks in 2011. These talks were aimed at giving our inves-
tors in the world’s important financial centers information about
certain key areas of our business. At the Agricultural Solutions
roundtable talk in New York in August, BASF management pre-
sented the strategic direction and growth opportunities of our
crop protection business. Furthermore, we illustrated the prog-
ress and prospects of our plant biotechnology activities. In mid-
November, our Oil & Gas roundtable in London gave investors
and analysts a chance to gain in-depth insight into our oil and
gas business; for example, we presented the growth strategy
and 2015 goals for the Exploration & Production and Natural
Gas Trading business sectors. It is very important to us that
analysts and investors have direct contact with BASF manage-
ment, as we feel that investors should get to know the people
who lead our businesses.

BASF on the capital market

We also held roadshows targeted specifically at investors who
base their investment decisions on sustainability criteria, where
we particularly explained our measures related to climate pro-
tection and energy efficiency. In addition, we conducted special
creditor relations roadshows in 2011 for the first time, present-
ing our business and our financing strategy to credit analysts
and creditors.

Our website provides investors with comprehensive infor-
mation about BASF and BASF shares. In recognition of the
growing importance of social media, we have expanded our
communication activities through social media channels, such
as Twitter and Facebook. Interested users can always find
up-to-date information about BASF in Web 2.0.

Analysts and investors have confirmed the quality of our
communication work — and have ranked BASF Investor Rela-
tions number one on many occasions. In the Thomson Extel
Pan-European Survey 2011, BASF’s Investor Relations team was
once again honored as “Best IR Team in Europe” and “Best IR
Team in the Chemicals Sector.” At the IR Magazine Europe
Awards 2011, BASF also won six top awards: Our Investor
Relations team again picked up the Grand Prix for large pub-
licly-listed companies in addition to first place in the chemicals
sector and for investor relations in Germany. Furthermore, BASF
was honored with the Investor Relations Award from the busi-
ness magazine Capital for the fifth time in a row.

Dialog with the capital markets

- Global roadshows and one-on-one meetings provide
information to institutional investors and ratings agencies

— Information events for private investors

— Roundtable talks and investor days provide in-depth
information on certain topics

— Special creditor relations roadshows provide
information to credit analysts and creditors

— Numerous awards for BASF Investor Relations

Investor Relations

can be contacted at

— Phone: +49 621 60-48230

— Email: ir@basf.com

— Internet: basf.com/share

The Investor Relations team’s newsletter keeps you
informed about current BASF topics and acts as a useful
reminder for important BASF dates.

Subscribe at: basf.com/share/newsletter

To our shareholders 1 3
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Key BASF share data’

BASF on the capital market

BASF Report 2011

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Year-end price € 50.71 27.73 43.46 59.70 53.89
Year high € 50.81 52.41 43.95 61.73 69.40
Year low € 35.98 19.95 20.71 39.43 43.66
Year average € 44.50 38.88 31.62 46.97 57.02
Daily trade in shares?
million € 298.3 282.1 157.4 197.5 265.7
million shares 6.7 7.3 5.0 4.2 4.7
Number of shares December 313 million shares 956.4 918.5 918.5 918.5 918.5
Market capitalization December 31 billion € 48.5 25.5 39.9 54.8 49.5
Earnings per share 4.16 3.13 1.54 4.96 6.74
Adjusted earnings per share* - 3.85 3.01 5.73 6.26
Dividend per share 1.95 1.95 1.70 2.20 2.50
Dividend yield® % 3.85 7.03 3.91 3.69 4.64
Payout ratio % 45 62 111 44 37
Price-earnings ratio (P/E ratio)® 12.2 8.9 28.2 12.0 8.0
T All values adjusted for two-for-one stock split conducted in the second quarter of 2008
2 Average, Xetra trading
3 After deduction of shares earmarked for cancellation
4 Calculated since 2008
5 Based on year-end share price
Further information
Securities code numbers International ticker symbol
Germany BASF11 Deutsche Bérse BAS
Great Britain 0083142 London Stock Exchange BFA
Switzerland 323600 Swiss Exchange AN
United States (CUSIP Number) 055262505
ISIN International Stock Identification Number DEOOOBASF111
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Strategy and values

BASF aims to strengthen its position as the world’s lead-
ing chemical company. We describe how we intend to
achieve this in our “We create chemistry” strategy, which
we presented in November 2011. This strategy builds on
our success in recent years and defines ambitious goals
for the future.

In 2050, around nine billion people will live on this planet. On the
one hand, this population growth is associated with enormous
global challenges but we also see many opportunities, espe-
cially for the chemical industry. We expect the chemical indus-
try to grow particularly strongly in the emerging economies, and
that these markets will account for around 60% of global chem-
ical production by 2020. Innovations based on chemistry will
play a key role in three areas in particular:

— Resources, environment and climate
— Food and nutrition
— Quality of life

BASF’s products and solutions will contribute to conserving
resources, ensuring healthy food and nutrition, and improving
quality of life. Sustainability and innovation will be significant

driving forces.

Our purpose

We create chemistry
for a sustainable future

The BASF Group
Strategy and values

BASF Report 2011

We combine economic success, social responsibility and envi-
ronmental protection. Through science and innovation, we
enable our customers in almost all industries to meet the current
and future needs of society.

Sustainability is becoming increasingly important as a key
factor for growth and value creation. Customers want sustain-
able products and system solutions, and the company’s
employees expect BASF to integrate sustainability firmly into its
day-to-day activities. That is why we will integrate sustainability
much more closely into our business.

Our position as the leading chemical company opens up
unique opportunities for us to contribute to a sustainable future.
We act in accordance with four strategic principles.

Our strategic principles
[ [ | We add value as

one company

We innovate to make our
customers more successful

We drive sustainable
solutions

\(( We form the

best team

Updated strategy

— Our “We create chemistry” strategy builds on our
success in recent years and defines ambitious goals
for the future

- Innovations based on chemistry will play a key role in
three areas in particular: resources, environment and
climate; food and nutrition; and quality of life

Our purpose

— We create chemistry for a sustainable future
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We add value as one company. Our Verbund system is unique
in the industry. We plan to strengthen this sophisticated and
profitable system even further. It extends from the Production
Verbund and Technology Verbund to the Know-How Verbund,
and provides access to all relevant customer industries world-
wide. In this way, we combine our strengths and add value as
one company.

We innovate to make our customers more successful.
We want to focus our business even more strongly on our cus-
tomers’ needs and contribute to their success with innovative
and sustainable solutions. In doing so, the focus of innovation
is shifting from individual chemicals to customized products,
functionalized materials and system solutions. Through close
partnerships with customers and research institutes, we link
expertise in chemistry, biology, physics, materials sciences and
engineering to create new solutions.

We drive sustainable solutions. In the future, sustainabil-
ity will increasingly become a starting point for new business
opportunities. We therefore value sustainability and innovation
as important drivers for profitable growth.

We form the best team. Committed and qualified employ-
ees around the world are the key to making our contribution to
a sustainable future. That is why we will continue to pursue our
goal of building the best team. We offer excellent working con-
ditions and an open leadership culture that fosters mutual trust
and respect and encourages high motivation.

The BASF Group
Strategy and values

Our values

In developing the “We create chemistry” strategy, we have also
defined our values more precisely. These were discussed
beforehand in workshops around the world with employees from
different functions and levels within the organization. It is impor-
tant that each and every member of the BASF team understands
our corporate values and acts accordingly. This is because our
values are an integral part of bringing our purpose as a com-
pany to life: “We create chemistry for a sustainable future.” They
guide how we interact with society, with our partners and with
each other.

Creative

In order to find innovative and sustainable solutions, we have
the courage to pursue bold ideas. We bring together our know-
how in many different fields and build partnerships to develop
creative, value-adding solutions. We also constantly work to
improve our products, services and solutions.

Open

We value diversity — in people, opinions and experience. That is
why we foster dialog based on honesty, respect and mutual
trust. We continually explore our talents and capabilities.

Responsible

We act responsibly as an integral part of society, strictly adher-
ing to our compliance standards. And we never compromise on
safety.

Entrepreneurial

We all contribute to BASF’s success, as individuals and as a
team. BASF turns market needs into customer solutions. We
succeed in this because we take ownership and embrace
accountability for our work.

Our strategic principles

— We add value as one company

— We innovate to make our customers more successful
— We drive sustainable solutions

— We form the best team

Our values

— Creative

— Open

— Responsible

— Entrepreneurial

Management’s Analysis 1 7
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Ambitious growth and profitability targets

As part of developing our strategy, we have defined goals that
we aim to meet by 2020. We forecast that worldwide chemical
production will grow faster than global gross domestic product
(GDP) through 2020. Based on 2010, we expect GDP to grow
by an average of 3% per year, which would be slightly faster than
in the past 10 years.

From baseline 2010, chemical production is estimated to
grow on average by 4% per year. We continue to aim to grow
two percentage points faster than global chemical production
and thus increase sales by an average of 6% per year until 2020.
We have set ourselves the ambitious goal of earning a premium
on our cost of capital of at least €2.5 billion on average each
year.

Based on the conditions listed above, we aim to increase
sales to approximately €85 billion by 2015 and to approximately
€115 billion by 2020. We expect all regions to contribute to this
sales growth: Europe with €53 billion in sales in 2020, Asia
Pacific with €29 billion, North America with €22 billion and South
America, Africa, Middle East with €11 billion. We also want to
increase profitability, as well, aiming for an EBITDA of about
€15 billion in 2015 and around €23 billion in 2020. Our updated
strategy also includes, for the first time, a goal for earnings per
share: Our target is to increase earnings to approximately €7.50
per share by 2015.

A new strategic excellence program, STEP, serves to
strengthen our competitiveness and profitability. By the end of
2015, STEP is expected to contribute around €1 billion to earn-
ings each year. This program, which follows on from our suc-
cessfully completed excellence program NEXT, includes mea-
sures in the areas of production, engineering, maintenance,
logistics, procurement and administration. STEP comprises
more than 100 projects that are expected to lower fixed costs
and raise profit margins.

The BASF Group
Strategy and values

BASF Report 2011

Innovations for a sustainable future

Innovations will play an important part in enabling us to achieve
our growth targets. In 2020, we aim to generate €30 billion of
our sales and €7 billion of our EBITDA with innovative products
that will have been on the market for less than 10 years. Inno-
vations in the chemical industry are nowadays not just based
on the development of new chemicals, but increasingly on new
materials and system solutions. These are the result of the com-
bination of expertise from a variety of disciplines. For us, inno-
vations of this kind require a broad portfolio and interdisciplin-
ary cooperation as well as a deep understanding of technology
and our customers’ value chains.

Based on the three key areas — resources, environment and
climate; food and nutrition; quality of life — we have focused on
seven primary customer industries in which we use our chem-
istry to contribute to solutions, and thus continue to grow prof-
itably: transportation, construction, consumer goods, health and
nutrition, electronics, agriculture, energy and resources. These
industries result in new growth fields in which we can make a
decisive contribution to innovative and sustainable solutions for
global challenges. Examples of these growth fields include bat-
tery materials, plant biotechnology and water treatment.

- For more on innovation, see page 28

Business expansion in emerging markets

BASF’s sales to customers in emerging markets have almost
tripled in the past 10 years and accounted for approximately
one-third of total sales (excluding Oil & Gas) in 2011. By 2020,
we aim to significantly increase sales to customers in emerging
markets to around 45% of total sales (excluding Oil & Gas).
Investments will also make an important contribution to our
growth. Between 2011 and 2020, we plan capital expenditures
of €30 billion to €35 billion. More than one-third of this amount
will be invested in emerging markets in order to strengthen our
leading position.

-+ For more on growth in emerging markets, see page 31 and page 82

Growth targets

— At least two percentage points faster than chemical
production

— Sales of approximately €85 billion in 2015

— Sales of approximately €115 billion in 2020

— All regions contribute to growth

Profitability targets

— Average premium on cost of capital of at least
€2.5 billion on average each year

— EBITDA of approximately €15 billion in 2015

— Doubling EBITDA compared with 2010 to approximately
€23 billion in 2020
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Global standards

With our “We create chemistry” strategy, we have more pre-
cisely defined the values which guide our actions. Based on our
value of acting responsibly as an integral part of society, our
standards are aligned with internationally recognized principles
and fulfill or exceed existing laws and regulations. We respect
and promote

— the 10 principles of the U.N. Global Compact,

— the Universal Declaration of Human Rights and both United
Nations covenants on human rights,

—the ILO’s core labor standards and Tripartite Declaration of
Principles concerning Multinational Enterprises and Social
Policy (MNE Declaration),

— the OECD Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises,

— the Responsible Care Global Charter, and

- the German Corporate Governance Code.

Numerous international principles outlining responsible corporate
actions were revised and adopted in 2011. We took an active part
in various initiatives, such as the U.N. Guiding Principles, OECD
Guidelines and 1ISO 26000 on social responsibility. BASF wel-
comes such efforts to create generally recognized principles. We
will continue our constructive contribution to the international dis-
cussion and align our internal guidelines and processes accord-
ingly.

We stipulate rules for our employees with standards that
apply Group-wide. We set ourselves ambitious goals for observ-
ing voluntary commitments and review our environmental, health
and safety performance using our Responsible Care Manage-
ment System. A three-pronged monitoring system ensures our
compliance with labor and social standards. Our business part-
ners are expected to align their actions with internationally rec-
ognized principles, and we have established management
systems to monitor this.

-+ For more on environmental, health and safety management as well
as audits, see page 90 onward

-+ For more on our monitoring system for labor and social standards,
see page 25 and page 90 onward

The BASF Group
Strategy and values

Code of Conduct and compliance
For us, compliance means the duty to comply with laws and
internal corporate directives. This takes place within the frame-
work of our corporate governance system, which encompasses
the management and monitoring of the company. The system
includes organization, corporate principles and guidelines as
well as internal and external control and monitoring mecha-
nisms. Our value “We strictly adhere to our compliance stan-
dards” ensures that this standard is a mandatory part of every-
day operations for all employees. Observance of this value is a
component in our senior executives’ target agreements.
Based on our worldwide standards, our Group companies
have created Codes of Conduct for the regions, taking into
account local laws and rules. These Codes are binding for all
employees in the respective countries; they are explained and
incorporated into daily business operations. Mandatory compli-
ance training for all employees is an important prerequisite for
successful implementation of the Codes of Conduct. Moreover,
employees have a number of potential contacts in addition to
their supervisors if they want to discuss questions or seek advice
and help: our legal and human resources departments, compli-
ance officers and our external compliance hotlines.

-+ For more on compliance, see page 123

)

Global standards

— We act according to clearly defined values and standards
of conduct that fulfill or go beyond laws and regulations
— We review our performance with monitoring systems and

regular audits
— We support the chemical industry’s global Responsible
Care initiative

Code of Conduct and compliance

- Binding standards of conduct ensure that our values are
firmly established in day-to-day business activities

— Mandatory compliance training for all employees

— External compliance hotlines offer advice and assistance
to employees around the world

Management’s Analysis 1 9
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Our goals
Our goals
Economic goals’
Annual Goals 2015 Goals 2020 Goals Status at year-end 2011
Growth Sales of approx. €85 billion Sales of approx. €115 billion Sales of €73.5 billion
Profitability We earn a premium on our cost of .
N . We earned a premium of
capital of at least €2.5 billion on - .
€2.6 billion on our cost of capital
average per year
EBITDA of approx. €15 billion Doubling EBITDA compared with  EBITDA of €12 billion

2010 to approx. €23 billion

Earnings per share of around €7.50 Earnings per share of €6.74

" Our goals are based on the assumptions that we will continue to grow two percentage points faster than global chemical production annually and that global gross
domestic product will grow by an average of 3% every year until 2020 and worldwide chemical production by 4% every year.

Environment, safety and product stewardship

Status at

2020 Goals year-end 2011 More on
Energy and climate protection
Emissions of greenhouse gases per metric ton of sales product? (baseline 2002) -40% -34.6% page 95
Improvement of energy efficiency in production processes? (baseline 2002) +35% +26.2% page 98
Stop the flaring of associated gas that is released during crude o o
oil production by Wintershall (2012 Goal) ms >95% page 95
Reduction in emissions from BASF operations (excluding Oil & Gas)
Emissions of air pollutants? (baseline 2002) -70% -60.5% page 93
Emissions to water® of organic substances (baseline 2002) -80% -73.5% page 100
Abstraction of drinking water for production (baseline 2010) -50% -20.9% page 100
!ntroducnon of sustainable water management at production sites 100% 2.0% page 100
in water stress areas
Transportation safety
Transportation accidents (baseline 2003) -70% -67.9% page 93
Product stewardship
Risk assgssment for all products sold worldwide by BASF in quantities of more than 599% 29.5% page 102
one metric ton per year
2 Excluding oil and gas production
3 Assuming comparable product portfolio
EBITDA 2011 Energy efficiency
(2020 Goal: approximately €23 billion) Improvement in energy efficiency in

production processes, baseline 2002 (2020 Goal: +35%)

c12 billion +26%

ol
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Employees and society

The BASF Group
Our goals

Management’s Analysis 21

Status at
2020 Goals year-end 2011 More on
Occupational safety
Lost time injury rate per million working hours (baseline 2002) -80% -42.0% page 88
Health protection
Health Performance Index (annual goal) >0.9 0.86 page 88
Status at
Executives Long-term Goals year-end 2011 More on
. . . . Increase in the proportion of non-German senior o
International proportion of senior executives executives (baseline 2003: 30%) 33.0% page 84
Senior executives with international experience Propqnlon Sfeniogexcettivesluiiblinieratiopal 79.7% page 84
experience over 70%
Women in executive positions Increase in the proportion of female executives worldwide 16.2% page 84
Employees Long-term Goal
Establish a common understanding that personnel Implementation
Personnel development development is a responsibility shared by employees and has started in all page 85

managers and develop related processes and tools

regions

Occupational safety

Lost time injury rate per million working hours,
baseline 2002 (2020 Goal: —80%)

—42%

Executives

International proportion of non-German senior executives,

baseline 2003 (Goal: >30%)

3%
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The BASF Group
Markets, structures and organization
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Markets, structures and organization
The world’s leading chemical company — The Chemical Company

We are the world’s leading chemical company: The
Chemical Company. Around 111,000 employees work
in the BASF Group, helping our customers from nearly
all sectors and almost every country in the world to
be more successful. Our broad portfolio is arranged into
six segments: Chemicals, Plastics, Performance Prod-
ucts, Functional Solutions, Agricultural Solutions and
Oil & Gas.

Markets and sites

BASF has subsidiaries in more than eighty countries and sup-
plies products to a large number of business partners in nearly
every part of the world. In 2011, we achieved 53% of our sales
with customers in Europe, of which 30 percentage points were
in the Oil & Gas segment. In addition, 19% of sales were gener-
ated in North America; 20% in Asia Pacific; and 8% in South
America, Africa, Middle East.

We operate six Verbund sites as well as approximately 370
additional production sites worldwide. Our Verbund site in
Ludwigshafen is the largest integrated chemical complex in the
world. This was where the Verbund concept was developed and
continuously optimized before it was applied to other sites
around the world.

The Production Verbund, for example, intelligently links pro-
duction units and energy demands so that heat from produc-
tion processes can be used as energy in other plants, saving

both primary resources and costs. Another important part of
the Verbund concept is the Know-How Verbund. Expert know-
ledge is pooled in our technology platforms. 3

- For more on the Verbund concept, see basf.com/verbund_e

Organization of the BASF Group

BASF’s six business segments contain 15 divisions which bear
the operational responsibility and manage our 70 global and
regional business units. The divisions develop strategies for our
76 strategic business units and are organized according to
sectors or products.

The regional divisions contribute to the local development
of our business and help to exploit market potential. They are
also responsible for optimizing the infrastructure for our busi-
ness. For financial reporting purposes, our divisions are grouped
into the following four regions: Europe; North America; Asia
Pacific; and South America, Africa, Middle East.

Three central divisions, five corporate departments and ten
competence centers provide Group-wide services such as
finance, investor relations, communications, human resources,
research, engineering and site management.

Structure of BASF
Segments

T

Chemicals Plastics Performance Functional Agricultural Oil & Gas

Products Solutions Solutions
Divisions

- Inorganics - Performance — Dispersions & — Catalysts - Crop Protection - Oil & Gas

— Petrochemicals Polymers Pigments — Construction (Exploration &

- Intermediates - Polyurethanes — Care Chemicals Chemicals Production, Natural

— Nutrition & Health

— Paper Chemicals

- Performance
Chemicals

— Coatings Gas Trading)

The BASF Group

— Six Verbund sites and around 370 other production sites
worldwide; approximately 111,000 employees

— Ludwigshafen is the largest BASF Verbund site and where
the Verbund concept was created

— Verbund: intelligent plant networking in the Production
Verbund; Know-How and Research Verbund

Organization of the BASF Group

— Six segments contain 15 divisions that manage
our global and regional business units

— Regional divisions optimize the infrastructure
and support operations

— Corporate divisions and departments as well as
competence centers provide Group-wide services
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Corporate legal structure

As the publicly-traded parent company of the BASF Group,
BASF SE takes a central position: Directly or indirectly, it holds
the shares in the companies belonging to the BASF Group, and
is also its largest operating company. The majority of Group com-
panies cover a broad spectrum of our business. Some concen-
trate on specific business areas: the Wintershall Group compa-
nies, for example, focus on oil and gas activities. In the BASF
Group Consolidated Financial Statements, 292 companies inclu-
ding BASF SE are fully consolidated. We consolidate 24 jointly

BASF sites

@(5\,@@%0 Florham Park

©@

) @®®

§ ¢=0Q)

( @ Sao Paulo
L ©

@® Regional centers

Selected production sites

The BASF Group
Markets, structures and organization

controlled entities with one or more partners on a proportional
basis. We also include 13 companies using the equity method.

- Formore, see the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements from
page 156 onward

Compensation report and disclosures
in accordance with section 315 (4) German
Commercial Code

-+ The compensation report can be found from page 129 onward, and
the disclosures required by takeover law in accordance with section
315 (4) German Commercial Code from page 124 onward. They form
part of the Management’s Analysis audited by the external auditor.

@® Verbund sites Most important research sites

Corporate legal structure

— BASF SE is the publicly-traded parent company of
the BASF Group

— 292 companies fully consolidated in the Consolidated
Financial Statements

— 24 joint ventures included on a proportional basis

— 13 additional companies included using the equity
method

Most important research sites

— Europe: Ludwigshafen, Basel, Disseldorf
— North America: Raleigh, Iselin, Wyandotte
- Asia Pacific: Shanghai, Singapore, Mumbai
— South America: Guaratingueta
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Value-based management
We add value as one company

“We add value as one company” is one of the four prin-
ciples of our “We create chemistry” strategy. To create
value in the long term, a company’s earnings must
exceed the costs of equity and debt capital. This is why
we strive to earn a premium on our cost of capital of at
least €2.5 billion on average per year. To secure BASF’s
long-term success, we encourage all employees to think
and act entrepreneurially within the framework of our
value-based management concept. Our goal: to create
awareness about how every employee can find value-
oriented solutions and implement these in an efficient
and effective manner in day-to-day business.

EBIT after cost of capital

Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) after cost of capital is
the key performance and management indicator for our oper-
ating divisions and business units. This figure takes into account
that BASF’s shareholders and creditors expect a return on the
capital they provide. The BASF Group creates added value only
when EBIT covers at least the cost of capital.

Calculation of the cost of capital percentage
The cost of capital percentage depends primarily on three
factors:

— the capital structure of the BASF Group,
—the level of interest rates on debt, and
—the return expected by shareholders.

Borrowing costs comprise interest payments for bank loans and
liabilities to the capital markets. The cost of equity corresponds
to the returns expected by providers of equity. This is deter-
mined by the market value of BASF shares and with the help of
the Capital Asset Pricing Model (CAPM).

The BASF Group
Value-based management
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An EBIT threshold is determined based on the cost of capital
and income taxes. Together, the BASF Group’s operating units
need to reach this threshold in order to earn the cost of capital.
The cost of capital percentage is the relationship between this
minimum EBIT level and the assets of the BASF Group’s oper-
ating units. In 2011, the cost of capital percentage was 11%; in
2012, it will be at the same level.

Value-based management throughout the company
Value-based management is only successful if it is firmly rooted
in the company. For us, value-based management is the daily
value-oriented performance of all our employees. We have iden-
tified value drivers that show how each individual business unit
can create value. We develop key figures for the individual value
drivers that help us to plan and pursue changes.

An important factor in ensuring the successful implemen-
tation of value-based management is linking the goals of BASF
to the individual target agreements of employees. In the oper-
ating units, achievement of positive EBIT after cost of capital is
the mostimportant performance indicator. In contrast, the value
contribution of the functional units is evaluated on the basis of
effectiveness and efficiency.

According to our value-based management concept, all
employees can make a contribution in their business to help
ensure that we earn the targeted premium on our cost of capi-
tal. Around the world, we raise awareness of this topic among
our team through numerous training programs, thereby promot-
ing more entrepreneurial thinking at all levels within BASF. 3

EBIT after cost of capital (million €)
Five-year summary’

Calculation of EBIT after cost of capital (million €)

2011 2010

2011 2,551 ——— EBIT BASF Group 8,586 7,761

2010 3,500 less EBIT for activities not assigned to the segments’ 178 (707)
2009 (226) less non-compensable foreign income taxes for oil

2008 1,621 production 439 983

2007 2,895 less cost of capital? 5,418 3,985

EBIT after cost of capital 2,551 3,500

' Since January 1, 2008, Group corporate costs are no longer allocated to the
segments, but rather reported under Other. The previous years’ figures were
not adjusted.

' The projected net expense is already provided for by an increase in the cost
of capital percentage.

21n 2010, the cost of capital percentage was 9%; in 2011, it was 11%.
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Sustainability management

Sustainability is firmly embedded in our strategy and
organization and is integrated into our core processes.
Sustainability management supports our strategic
principle “We drive sustainable solutions,” helping us to
put our company’s purpose - “We create chemistry for a
sustainable future” - into practice.

Strategy

We define sustainability as the balance between economic
success, social responsibility and environmental protection. Our
sustainability management has three strategic responsibilities:
Minimizing risks, taking advantage of business opportunities
and establishing strong relationships with our internal and
external stakeholders. We minimize risks by identifying relevant
issues early on and through operational excellence in our busi-
ness processes. We take advantage of business opportunities
by helping our customers offer innovative and sustainable
solutions. We engage in ongoing open dialog with our stake-
holders from, for example, business, society and politics.

Minimizing risks

We set ourselves globally consistent standards. We use various
systems to monitor whether and how our sites adhere to these
standards for environment, safety and product stewardship.
Furthermore, we check to make sure they fulfill commitments
to labor and social standards as well as compliance. We
conduct internal audits on process safety, occupational health
and safety, and environmental protection. We review labor and
social standards based on a three-part monitoring system. This
includes an external compliance hotline, a survey in our Group
companies and dialog with employee representatives and global
organizations. In addition to economic criteria, our suppliers are
selected on the basis of environmental protection, labor and
social standards.

-+ For more on standards, on the implementation of requirements
related to environment, health, safety and security, and on internal
audits, see page 88 and page 90 onward

-+ For more on compliance, see page 123; for more on our monitoring
system for labor and social standards, see basf.com/audits_e

-+ For more on supply chain management, see page 92

The BASF Group
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Stakeholder engagement

We foster an ongoing exchange with our stakeholders. These
include employees, customers, suppliers and shareholders, as
well as experts in science, industry, politics, society and media.
We have a particular responsibility toward our production sites’
neighbors, and discuss current issues with them in 85 Commu-
nity Advisory Panels (CAPs). In 2011, for example, we provided
extensive information to the residents of Chongging, China,
about our plans to construct a production facility for diphenyl-
methane diisocyanate (MDI) and offered them a platform for
questions and discussion.

We provide transparent communication about our activi-
ties and take on critical questions. Social media is one way in
which we are expanding our direct dialog with our stakehold-
ers. An open exchange with consumers, non-governmental
organizations, policy makers and the public is very important
for the successful introduction of products based on new tech-
nologies. For example, we have been involved in international
dialogs on nanotechnology since 2004. In 2011, we expanded
the number of participants in our Dialog Forum Nano, founded
in 2008. In addition to representatives of environmental, con-
sumer and religious groups, we also invited representatives of
consumer-oriented businesses.

BASF is actively involved in local Global Compact networks.
We have had a representative in the Global Reporting Initiative
Stakeholder Council since the beginning of 2012.

-+ For more on the stakeholder dialog, see basf.com/dialog_e

Business opportunities with sustainability

Our innovative strength and expertise support our customers in
developing sustainable products and processes. We measure
their satisfaction with our Non Conformance Management
system, which centrally records any difficulties customers
experience with processes or products. This analysis allows us
to learn from mistakes, decrease costs and continually improve
our performance.

Strategy

— Sustainability management supports our corporate
purpose: “We create chemistry for a sustainable future”

— Strategic responsibilities: minimizing risks, taking
advantage of business opportunities and establishing
strong relationships with stakeholders

Stakeholder engagement

— BASF fosters ongoing exchange with its stakeholders

— Participants in Dialog Forum Nano expanded to
include consumer-oriented businesses

— Engagement in local Global Compact networks
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Our business units investigate how they can support custom-
ers and suppliers in terms of sustainability. For example, in our
S.ET. (Sustainability, Eco-efficiency, Traceability) initiative, we
help food and feed producers to improve the sustainability of
their products and processes along the value-adding chain. In
2011, we supported our customers in optimizing the compound
feed for farmed salmon. We also help our customers in emerg-
ing markets to reduce their greenhouse gas emissions in accor-
dance with the U.N.’s Clean Development Mechanism projects.
For this, we offer catalysts that decompose nitrous oxide as well
as advice on project implementation.

Since 1996, we have used our Eco-Efficiency Analysis to
identify critical parameters for improving the environmental and
economic aspects of products and processes — from raw
material extraction to disposal. We are also contributing our
expertise to the drafting of the international norm ISO 14045,
which outlines systems for eco-efficiency analysis. In addition,
we use our Socio-Eco-Efficiency Analysis, SEEBALANCE®, to
consider social impacts. We used the experience gained from
these activities to develop AgBalance®. AgBalance makes it
possible to measure and analyze the sustainability of agricul-
tural production along the entire value-adding chain. BASF
worked closely with stakeholders in the farming sector, such as
interest groups and non-government organizations, in the
development of AgBalance.

-+ For more on Eco-Efficiency Analysis and SEEBALANCE,
see basf.com/eco-efficiency

-+ For more on AgBalance, see basf.com/agbalance_e and page 103

Identifying and assessing important issues

In order to identify areas that could represent opportunities or
risks for our business now or in the future, we regularly analyze
issues in terms of their significance for society and BASF. In
2010, we surveyed several hundred stakeholders for our
materiality analysis. Subsequently, BASF’s experts from several
functions assessed the strategic importance of these topics
and, in 2011, prioritized the sustainability issues that are of par-
ticular significance for BASF. These include energy and climate,

The BASF Group
Sustainability management
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water, product stewardship, renewable resources, biodiversity
and human capital development as well as human and labor
rights.

We have already reached our goals for climate protection
and energy efficiency ahead of schedule, along with two of our
goals for water management, and in 2011 we defined new global
targets for these issues. We are advancing our ambitious goals
in product stewardship. Based on the materiality analysis and
issues identified, our sustainability management is continuously
evolving.

-+ For more on materiality analysis, see basf.com/materiality

- For more on renewable resources, see
basf.com/resource_conservation

-+ For more on climate protection, see page 95 onward; for
more on water, see page 100 onward; for more on
product stewardship, see page 102 onward

-+ For more on biodiversity, see basf.com/biodiversity and page 103

Organization

Our globally responsible Sustainability Council is the decision-
making body for the sustainability issues most important to us.
It ensures that our actions are guided by sustainable develop-
ment. The Chairwoman of the Council is Board member Margret
Suckale. The Council comprises ten heads of functional, oper-
ating and regional divisions, including the Climate Protection
Officer. Regional steering committees identify focus areas in the
regions, propose relevant projects and implement global deci-
sions. Operating division units are responsible for the establish-
ment and maintenance of worldwide networks and advance
concepts for improved sustainability and product stewardship.
The Sustainability Center coordinates the implementation of the
sustainability strategy in all core processes, liaising between
the Sustainability Council, regional steering committees and
specialist units.

-+ For more on the Sustainability Council, see basf.com/sustainability

)

Business opportunities with sustainability

— Eco-Efficiency Analysis and SEEBALANCE as
strategic tools for evaluating the sustainability
of products and processes

— Development of AgBalance, instrument for measuring and
evaluating the sustainability of agricultural production

Identifying and assessing important issues

— Sustainability issues identified based on stakeholder
survey within the scope of materiality analysis

— Energy and climate, water, product stewardship,
renewable resources, biodiversity, human capital
development and human and labor rights prioritized as
material issues
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Value added statement

Our value added statement shows the BASF Group’s
contribution to both private and public income, and how
our economic activities provide value to society.

Value added results from the company’s business performance
minus goods and services purchased as well as depreciation
and amortization. In contrast to the income statement, which
is based on the perspective of the owners, the distribution
statement takes into account all the stakeholders in this value-
adding process: employees, the state, other companies, lend-
ers and shareholders.

BASF Group’s value added amounted to €18,652 million in
2011. This was an increase of 12% compared with the previous
year (2010: €16,658 million). The rise was primarily attributable
to the increase in the business performance. The greatest share
of value added was distributed to our employees, who received
€8,576 million in the form of wages, salaries and social bene-

Value added statement BASF Group 2011

Creation of value added
(million €, previous year’s figures in parentheses)

Value added 18,652 (16,658)

3,407 (3,370) 1

1

2 Amortization
and depreciation
Services purchased, 12,656 (11,459)

energy costs and
other expenses

w

Business
performance
76,701 (65,496)

IN

Cost of raw 41,986 (34,009)
materials and 3
merchandise

The BASF Group
Value added statement

fits. In addition, a significant share of value added was distrib-
uted to the state as taxes. This amounted to €2,711 million
compared with €2,583 million in the previous year.

In 2011, BASF spent a total of €48.7 million on donations,
sponsorship and funding for our own projects (2010: €49.8 mil-
lion). This amount is reported in “other expenses.”

The remaining value added of €6,188 million was available
to be paid out as a dividend to BASF SE shareholders or
retained.

-+ For more on wages and salaries, see page 83 and page 171 onward;
for more on taxes, see page 169 onward; and for more on donations
and sponsorship, see page 89

Use of value added
(previous year’s figures in parentheses)

46.0% Ganeres

14.5% f2ss
2.2% Minorty interests
41% g

33 2 (y Remaining for shareholders
' 0 (dividend and retention)
(27.4%)

Value added statement

— BASF Group’s financial contribution to private
and public income
— Increase of 12% compared with 2010 to €18,652 million

Use of value added

— €8,576 million for employees

— €2,711 million for taxes

— €6,188 million in remaining value added, to be paid as a
dividend to BASF SE shareholders or retained
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Innovation

The BASF Group
Innovation
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Meeting challenges, developing new business areas

Innovation based on research and development is the
foundation of BASF’s strategy for profitable growth and
long-term business success. Highly-qualified employees
are working in international and interdisciplinary teams
to find answers to the challenges of the future. With our
innovative products and processes, we provide solutions
for nearly all industrial sectors.

The rapidly growing world population presents society with
special challenges. The demand for food, clean water and
energy is growing and society’s needs are increasing, but
resources are finite. Sustainable solutions are therefore required
—and chemistry can make an important contribution.

Our innovative strength rests on our global team of highly
qualified employees with various specializations. In 2011, the
number of employees involved in research and development
rose to around 10,100 (2010: 9,600).

We were able to further expand our Know-How Verbund
through the newly added research and development activities
of Cognis. We maintain our own research site in Disseldorf,
where we concentrate on topics pertaining to surfactants,
renewable raw materials and lipid biotechnology. The establish-
ment of the first Innovation Campus Asia Pacific is a step
forward in our goal to make our research activities more global.
This research and development center will accommodate
around 450 employees at the site in Shanghai, China, and is
scheduled to open in the second half of 2012. It will strengthen
our activities in innovation for the Asian market, helping us to
serve the needs of this rapidly growing market even better.

Another integral component of our Know-How Verbund is
a network of around 1,950 cooperative partnerships around the
world with universities, research institutions, partners in indus-
try and start-up companies. For example, we opened the jointly
operated laboratory BELLA (Battery and Electrochemistry Lab-
oratory) with the Karlsruhe Institute of Technology in 2011. There,
we explore innovative materials and functional components for
the battery generations of today and tomorrow — because high-
performance, affordable batteries for everyday use are the key

components for the mobility of the future. Together with auto-
mobile manufacturer Daimler, we have developed the smart
forvision concept car, which combines our ideas for compre-
hensive electric mobility. In the smart forvision, special empha-
sis was placed on energy efficiency, temperature management
and lightweight design. In such projects, BASF’s innovations set
new standards.

- For more on the smart forvision, see smartforvision.basf.com

Our research pipeline included approximately 2,800 projects in
2011. Expenditures on research and development increased by
€113 million to €1,605 million (2010: €1,492 million). The operat-
ing divisions accounted for 77% of research expenditures, while
the remaining 23% was allocated to cross-divisional, strategic
corporate research. Around one third of our research and
development expenditure was once again invested in projects
for increased energy efficiency and climate protection. We aim
to achieve sales of around €30 billion in 2020 with innovations
— new and improved products or applications that have been
on the market for 10 years or less.

One way in which a company measures its innovative power
is by the number and quality of its patents. In 2011, BASF filed
for around 1,050 new patents worldwide. Furthermore, we
ranked first in the Patent Asset Index™ for the third time in
succession. This method, which compares patent portfolios
industry-wide, found BASF to be the most innovative company
in the chemical industry worldwide.

- For a multi-year overview of research and development
expenditures, see the Ten-Year Summary on page 221

BASF’s research focus areas
Our forward-looking research projects, in which we search for
answers to pressing societal issues, are derived from global
megatrends; until the end of 2011, these were grouped into five
growth clusters.

Our goal in the Plant Biotechnology growth cluster is to
make targeted improvements to the properties and character-
istics of plants. For example, we worked together with Monsanto

Innovation

— Around 10,100 research and development
employees worldwide

— Research pipeline with around 2,800 projects

—€1,605 million in research and development
expenditures in 2011

Expenditure on research and development by segment

1 Chemicals 8% 7 2

2 Plastics 9%

3 Performance Products 21%

4 Functional Solutions 12% e €1,605

i ° million 3
5  Agricultural Solutions 26%

6 Oil & Gas 1% 5

7  Corporate research, Other 23% 4
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to develop the world’s first genetically modified drought-toler-
ant variety of corn (maize). This corn was approved for cultiva-
tion in the United States in December 2011. It will be grown on
selected farms in the United States starting in 2012 in order to
familiarize farmers with the product.

In the White Biotechnology growth cluster, we use micro-
organisms and enzymes to synthesize chemical products.
We want to conduct extensive research on the suitability of
algae, for example, as a production organism for synthesizing
specialty chemicals, such as those for the cosmetics and food
industries. To this end, we started up a pilot plant for algae
cultivation in 2011.

In the Raw Material Change growth cluster, we are research-
ing alternatives and supplements to crude oil as a raw material
for the chemical industry. In the future, we want to synthesize
important basic chemicals from natural gas or carbon dioxide,
as well. One process, in which methane (the main component
of natural gas) is turned into benzene at high temperatures, has
proven especially promising. In addition, we are looking for ways
to produce syngas from the feedstocks methane and carbon
dioxide. Syngas is a universal raw material for many chemi-
cals.

The Energy Management growth cluster focuses on
solving the energy questions of the future. Cooling systems
which use the magnetocaloric effect use only half as much
energy as conventional systems. We are working with the Dutch
Foundation for Fundamental Research on Matter to find new
magnetocaloric materials with improved properties. Together
with partners in industry, we are making the first appliances
based on this technology ready for series production.

Our focus areas in the Nanotechnology growth cluster
include formulating active ingredients for the pharmaceutical
industry and additives for the construction sector. With the help
of nanoformulations and microfluidics, which we are working on
as part of the BASF Advanced Research Initiative at Harvard
University, we can introduce specific molecules into substrates
in order to create new or improve existing properties. This, for

The BASF Group
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example, allows the body to absorb medications better or gives
our customers more control over the hardening process of
concrete.

We concluded the growth cluster initiative in 2011 and
enhanced our research and development activities within the
scope of the “We create chemistry” strategy. In the future, we
will focus more intently on the market and our customers’ needs.
We are broadening our long-term research activities to encom-
pass the development of new business areas. We have identi-
fied more than ten growth fields — such as batteries, water treat-
ment and organic electronics —that represent attractive business
opportunities in our target industries. In addition, we are focus-
ing on three pioneering technology areas that provide the tech-
nological basis for the development of future-oriented solutions:
Materials, Systems & Nanotechnology; Raw Material Change;
and White Biotechnology.

We have also redesigned our research processes and
structures. Our knowledge and competence centers are the
central technology platforms Advanced Materials & Systems
Research, Biological & Effect Systems Research, Process
Research & Chemical Engineering as well as BASF Plant
Science. These are supported by BASF Future Business and
BASF Venture Capital, which primarily focus on identifying and
promoting new business areas. Together with the development
units in our operating divisions, as well as the research facilities
in key regions, these platforms form the core of our global Know-
How Verbund. Through more efficient innovation management,
we have laid the foundation for even more profitable growth.

-+ For more on research and development, see basf.com/innovations;
for more on innovation in the segments, see page 44 onward

)

Enhancing research activities

— Growth cluster initiative concluded in 2011

— Research and development activities developed further
in alignment with the “We create chemistry” strategy

— Stronger research orientation on the market and future
growth fields

Spotlight on electric mobility

— BASF’s innovations reduce energy consumption in
electric cars, thereby increasing their range

— Comprehensive approach based on electricity
generation, storage and use

— Focus on new battery materials, lightweight design
and temperature management

— smart forvision concept car developed in
collaboration with Daimler
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Trends in the global economy

The strong growth momentum from the previous year
continued in the first half of 2011. However, this economic
upturn was followed by significantly weaker growth in all
regions in the second half of the year. This development
was influenced by uncertainty in the financial markets as
a result of the intensification of the national debt crises
in the eurozone and the United States. Compared with
the previous year, global gross domestic product there-
fore did not rise as sharply (+2.7%) as we had originally
forecast for 2011 (+3.3%).

Global gross domestic product growth (+2.7%) at the beginning
of 2011 was driven by both the previous year’s economic upturn
as well as by strong economic growth in the emerging markets.
By contrast, negative growth impetus over the course of the year
came mainly from the industrialized countries: The intensifica-
tion of the national debt crises in the eurozone and the United
States led to lower growth expectations, despite an overall good
level ofincoming orders. Consumer confidence decreased. The
decline in worldwide demand for goods dampened growth in
international trade.

Development by region

While gross domestic product in the European Union grew
substantially in the first half of 2011, growth weakened in the
second half. Private consumption in particular lost momentum.
Given the high national debt levels of some European countries,
there was considerable variation in growth rates. Overall, gross
domestic product grew almost as fast as in the previous year
(2010: +1.8%; 2011: +1.6%). Germany in particular benefited from
good foreign demand for capital goods and posted a compar-
atively high level of economic growth (2010: +3.6%; 2011:
+3.0%).

The business year at BASF
Trends in the global economy
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In 2011, the U.S. economy grew only half as much as in the pre-
vious year and was weak overall (2010: +3.0%; 2011: +1.6%).
Ongoing high unemployment rates particularly led to lower
spending among U.S. consumers. Furthermore, economic
growth was negatively impacted by prolonged political debate
over raising the debt ceiling and necessary fiscal consolidation
measures. The continued low level of construction investment
additionally slowed overall economic growth.

Although gross domestic product growth in Asia (exclud-
ing Japan) was lower in 2011 than in the previous year, the
region nevertheless saw comparatively strong growth (2010:
+9.2%; 2011: +7.1%). The most important regional growth driver
was China (+9.2%), where government investment programs
strengthened the domestic economy. However, higher interest
rates as well as the creation of overcapacities weakened both
consumer demand and investment activities in China. India also
posted strong growth (+7.6%).

Economic output fell sharply in Japan following the earth-
quake and tsunami disaster in March 2011; gross domestic
product shrank (-0.5%). The appreciation of the yen also neg-
atively impacted the export sector.

Growth slowed in South America in 2011 (2010: +6.4%;
2011: +4.0%). While rising raw materials exports initially strength-
ened economic development, many countries in South Amer-
ica experienced increasing inflation rates. In Brazil in particular,
the Central Bank’s more restrictive monetary policy at the
beginning of the year and higher interest rates dampened
private consumption and investment activities.

- For the forecast for the economic environment in 2012,
see page 113 onward

Trends in the global economy in 2011

— Increase in global gross domestic product (+2.7%)
weaker than in previous year and lower than
our original forecast (+3.3%)

— Significant growth slowdown in the second
half of the year

— Uncertainty in the financial markets due to
intensification of the national debt crises
in the eurozone and the United States

Gross domestic product 2011
Real change compared with the previous year

World 2.7% ——
European Union 1.6%
United States 1.6%
Asia (excl. Japan) 71%
Japan (0.5%)
South America 4.0%
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Trends in key customer industries

Following the previous year’s strong upturn (+7.2%),
growth in global industrial production reached a high
level in 2011 (+4.7%), but was lower than our forecast
(+5.0%). Of all regions, Asia’s emerging markets posted
the strongest growth in industrial production (+10.4%).
Growth was considerably weaker in the industrialized
countries of the OECD (+2.2%), mostly as a result of pro-
duction outages in Japan following the earthquake and
tsunami disaster in March 2011.

The transportation sector posted solid growth (+5.2%). The
number of automobiles produced worldwide rose substantially
(+5.7%), despite major production outages in Japan (—19.0%).
Automotive production in the United States continued to show
strong growth in 2011 (+9.5%). In the European Union, automo-
tive production on a per-unit basis again grew significantly
compared with the previous year (+10.0%).

The energy and resources sector also benefited from the
general economic development and posted robust growth
(+3.1%).

The construction sector overall recovered noticeably
(+3.9%). But this development varied widely from region to
region: In the United States (+1.0%), Japan (+1.2%) and the
European Union (+1.1%), the construction industry grew only
slowly due to existing overcapacities. By contrast, Asia’s emerg-
ing markets posted a considerable increase over the previous
year (+7.9%).

The consumer goods industry (+5.9%) benefited in 2011
from high demand worldwide in its important subindustries.
Production increased sharply in the electrical industry in partic-
ular (+9.3%), although growth in Japan slowed down following
production outages (+4.2%). Growth in this sector was driven
by the electrical industry in Asia’s emerging markets (+14.4%).
The textile industry also grew considerably worldwide (+5.5%).
Asia (excluding Japan) posted the most substantial rise in tex-
tile production (+7.4%). The paper industry grew worldwide
(+3.1%), although growth halved compared with the previous
year. While growth in Asia’s emerging markets was above aver-
age (+10.4%), paper production increased only slightly in the
industrialized countries (+0.7%).

The business year at BASF
Trends in key customer industries

Within the electronics industry (+6.6%), information and com-
munication technology posted the strongest growth. In Japan,
growth declined due to production outages, especially in semi-
conductor manufacturing.

The health and nutrition sector grew sharply worldwide
(+3.6%). The food industry in particular posted significant growth
(+3.6%). Production grew considerably faster in emerging mar-
kets (+7.7%) than in the industrialized countries (+1.1%).

Agriculture posted average growth worldwide in 2011
(+2.2%). Production declined slightly in the industrialized coun-
tries (—1.3%) as a result of both weather conditions as well as
the earthquake and tsunami disaster in Japan. By contrast,
favorable weather conditions and higher prices for agricultural
products led to a production increase in emerging markets
(+3.9%).

- For the forecast for the economic environment in 2012,
see page 113 onward

Growth in key customer industries in 2011
Real change compared with the previous year

Development of industrial production in 2011

— Global industrial production growth at a high level (+4.7%)

— Strongest growth in Asia’s emerging markets

- Significant growth in the electronics industry (+6.6%) and
consumer goods industry (+5.9%)

OECD  22% —
Industries total
World 4.7%
Transportation OECD 2.9% [—
World 5.2%
Energy and raw OECD 0.3% n
materials World 3.1%
Construction OECD 1.5% [
industry World  3.9%
Consumer OECD 3.3% [—
goods World  5.9%
Electronics OECD 5.2% [——
World 6.6%
Health and OECD 1.0% [
nutrition World 3.6%
Agriculture OECD  (1.3%)
World 2.2%
BASF sales by industry
Direct customers
>15% Chemicals and plastics | Energy and resources
10-15% Consumer goods | Transportation
5-10% Agriculture | Construction industry

<5% Health and nutrition | Electronics
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Trends in the chemical industry

2011 was a successful year overall for the chemical
industry. Global chemical production (excluding pharma-
ceuticals) grew by 4.8% - slightly slower than we had
originally forecast for 2011 (+5.2%). Following strong
development in the first half of the year, economic growth
slowed down in the second half. Overall, growth in chemi-
cal production (excluding pharmaceuticals) stabilized at
a high level.

After returning to pre-crisis levels in 2010, global chemical
production (excluding pharmaceuticals) continued to develop
positively in 2011 as a result of high demand from key customer
industries. Chemical production grew in the European Union
(+1.6%). Thanks to the close links between the chemical indus-
try and fast-growing, export-oriented customer industries,
chemical production increased more sharply in Germany (+2.0%)
than in the European Union. Chemical production in Japan, how-
ever, posted a significant decline (-3.1%) as a result of the earth-
quake and tsunami disaster. In the United States, the overall
economic situation also led to slower growth in the chemical
industry (+2.1%). Chemical production grew strongly once again
in South America (+4.7%) and Asia (excluding Japan) (+11.1%).

Chemical production (excluding pharmaceuticals) in 2011
Real change compared with the previous year

World 4.8% ——
E.U. 1.6%
United States 21%
Asia (excl. Japan) 11.1%
Japan (3.1%)
South America 4.7%
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Trends in the chemical industry
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The crude oil price of Brent blend increased significantly com-
pared with the previous year. This was due on the one hand to
increased global demand following the economic recovery, and
on the other, to the tense political situation in North Africa and
the Middle East which led to cutbacks in oil production. Never-
theless, fluctuations in the crude oil price over the course of the
year were relatively low. The average monthly prices ranged from
$96 per barrel to $124 per barrel. The average annual oil price
was around $110 per barrel, an increase of approximately 40%
over the previous year’s level and the highest average annual oil
price to date.

Average monthly prices for the chemical raw material
naphtha ranged over the course of the year from a low of $850
per metric ton in January to a high of more than $1,050 per
metric ton in April. The average annual price of naphtha was
$930 per metric ton, an increase of more than 30% over the
previous year’s level.

The average annual price of natural gas in the United States
was around $4/mbtu, unchanged from the previous year. In
the European Union, the average price of natural gas rose to
more than $10/mbtu, an increase of about 25% compared
with 2010.

-+ For the forecast for the economic environment in 2012,
see page 113 onward

Trends in the chemical industry in 2011

— Global chemical production (excluding
pharmaceuticals) grows by 4.8%

— Chemical production increases in the
European Union (+1.6%)

— Price of Brent blend crude oil increases
significantly year-on-year

Price trends for crude oil (Brent blend) and naphtha
($/barrel, $/metric ton)
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Sales and earnings (million €)

The business year at BASF
Business review BASF Group
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2011 2010 Change in %
Sales 73,497 63,873 15.1
Income from operations before depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) 11,993 11,131 7.7
EBITDA margin % 16.3 17.4 -
Income from operations (EBIT) before special items 8,447 8,138 3.8
Income from operations (EBIT) 8,586 7,761 10.6
Financial result 384 (388)
Income before taxes and minority interests 8,970 7,373 21.7
Income before minority interests 6,603 5,074 30.1
Net income 6,188 4,557 35.8
Earnings per share 6.74 4.96 35.9
Adjusted earnings per share 6.26 5.73 9.2
Sales and earnings by quarter 2011 (million €)'
1st quarter 2nd quarter 3rd quarter 4th quarter 2011
Sales 19,361 18,461 17,607 18,068 73,497
Income from operations before depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) 3,365 3,015 2,709 2,904 11,993
Income from operations (EBIT) before special items 2,732 2,237 1,964 1,514 8,447
Income from operations (EBIT) 2,550 2,217 1,882 1,937 8,586
Financial result 830 (121) (161) (164) 384
Income before taxes and minority interests 3,380 2,096 1,721 1,773 8,970
Net income 2,411 1,454 1,192 1,131 6,188
Earnings per share € 2.62 1.59 1.30 1.23 6.74
Adjusted earnings per share € 1.94 1.75 1.52 1.05 6.26
Sales and earnings by quarter 2010 (million €)'
1st quarter 2nd quarter 3rd quarter 4th quarter 2010
Sales 15,454 16,214 15,781 16,424 63,873
Income from operations before depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) 2,627 2,867 2,934 2,703 11,131
Income from operations (EBIT) before special items 1,954 2,206 2,213 1,765 8,138
Income from operations (EBIT) 1,840 2,079 2,155 1,687 7,761
Financial result (80) (93) (105) (110) (388)
Income before taxes and minority interests 1,760 1,986 2,050 1,577 7,373
Net income 1,029 1,183 1,245 1,100 4,557
Earnings per share € 1.12 1.29 1.35 1.20 4.96
Adjusted earnings per share € 1.32 1.50 1.52 1.39 5.73

"Quarterly results not audited

Sales

Sales increase significantly, sales volumes rise in most

Sales (million €)

divisions; months-long suspension of oil production in 2011 73,497 |
Libya negatively impacts sales and earnings growth 2010 63873

2000 50,693

2008 62,304

2007 57,951

+15%
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BASF significantly increased sales and earnings in
2011. The economic upturn of 2010 continued into 2011,
although growth momentum slowed in the second half
of the year due to uncertainty in the financial markets.
Growing demand was accompanied by increasing raw
material costs, which we were largely able to pass on
to the market. Sales and earnings were negatively
impacted by the months-long suspension of our oil
production in Libya.

Compared with 2010, sales increased by 15.1% to
€73,497 million. Income from operations improved by
10.6% and amounted to €8,586 million.

-+ For more on the economic environment in 2012, see pages 113-115

Sales and income from operations

Positive economic development led to an approximately 2.5%
increase in demand in the chemicals business', and most divi-
sions improved their sales volumes. Prices rose as a result of
higher raw material costs, especially in the Petrochemicals and
Catalysts divisions. However, we were unable to fully pass on
the increased raw material costs to our customers in all prod-
uct lines, which negatively affected our margins. The integrated
Cognis businesses were included for the full year for the first
time, which had a positive influence on sales and earnings
growth. Our sales and earnings only included the styrenics busi-
ness until it was transferred to the Styrolution joint venture on
October 1, 2011. Other company acquisitions and divestitures
had only a small influence on the development of our sales and
earnings.

Sales in the Chemicals segment rose significantly com-
pared with the previous year mostly as a result of higher prices.
We were largely able to pass on increased raw material costs
to our customers, especially because market supplies of some
products continued to be scarce. The Petrochemicals division
in particular benefited from this development. High capacity uti-
lization rates, our cost-cutting programs and good margins all
led to an increase in income from operations.

The business year at BASF
Business review BASF Group
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Factors influencing sales BASF Group

Change in Change
million € in %
Volumes 311
Prices 7,800 12
Currencies (1,372) )
Acquisitions and changes in
the scope of consolidation 3,246 5
Divestitures (361)
Total change in sales 9,624 15

Sales in the Plastics segment were considerably above the pre-
vious year’s level. Especially in the first half of the year, demand
from numerous customer industries grew, particularly from the
automotive industry. We raised prices in response to increasing
raw material costs; they declined only in the TDI business. This
prevented income from operations in the Polyurethanes division
from matching the level of the previous year. However, signifi-
cantly increased earnings in the Performance Polymers division
were able to mostly compensate for this development.

Sales in the Performance Products segment improved,
mainly driven by the full-year inclusion of the Cognis businesses
as well as by increased prices due to higher raw material costs.
Furthermore, our products were in high demand from most cus-
tomer industries, especially during the first half of 2011. Special
items related to the Cognis integration had a negative influence
on earnings in some divisions. Overall, however, the integrated
Cognis businesses made a positive contribution and played a
decisive role in the year-on-year increase in the segment’s
income from operations.

In the Functional Solutions segment, higher sales volumes
and a significant sales increase were predominantly attributable
to high demand from the automotive industry. In the Catalysts
division, sales growth was also boosted by a sharp increase in
precious metal prices. Sales also rose in the Construction
Chemicals and Coatings divisions. The segment’s decline in
income from operations was mainly a result of special charges

Income from operations
— Considerable earnings increase year-on-year

— High demand from many customer industries
— Higher raw material costs largely passed on to customers

+11%

Income from operations (million €)

2011 8,556 |

2010 7,761
2009 3,677
2008 6,463
2007 7,316

" Our chemicals business includes the Chemicals, Plastics, Performance Products and Functional Solutions segments.
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in the Coatings and Construction Chemicals divisions; even the
significantly increased earnings contribution from the Catalysts
division could not compensate for this.

Sales in the Agricultural Solutions segment grew primar-
ily as a result of high demand. We were able to increase sales
volumes in the growth markets of Asia and Eastern Europe in
particular. Prices remained stable overall, but the depreciation
of the U.S. dollar negatively affected sales growth. Income from
operations exceeded the previous year’s level despite increases
in expenditures for research and development as well as for the
expansion of our sales activities in growth markets.

Sales increased significantly in the Oil & Gas segment as
a result of higher prices. In the Exploration & Production busi-
ness sector, however, the months-long suspension of oil pro-
duction in Libya led to a decline in volumes. In contrast, sales
volumes in Natural Gas Trading were slightly higher than in the
previous year. Income from operations for the segment declined
as a result of the lower contribution from Libya.

Sales in Other increased to €6,275 million from €5,851 mil-
lion in the previous year. As of October 1, 2011, our styrenics
business was transferred to the Styrolution joint venture; this
unit therefore only contributed to the sales and earnings of Other
for the first nine months of 2011. During this period, sales in
Styrenics significantly exceeded the level of the previous year.
Sales also developed positively in the fertilizer business and raw
materials trading. Income from operations in Other rose from
minus €707 million to €178 million. This increase is predomi-
nantly attributable to gains on the disposal of our styrenics busi-
ness in the amount of €593 million. In addition, special charges
as well as expenses for the long-term incentive program were
both lower.

EBIT after cost of capital amounted to €2,551 million. This
means we once again earned a high premium on our cost of
capital.

The business year at BASF
Business review BASF Group

Special items in income from operations

Special items had a positive influence on income from opera-
tions in 2011, amounting to €139 million compared with
minus €377 million in 2010. Gains resulting from the transfer of
our styrenics business to the Styrolution joint venture were
primarily responsible for this significant improvement. The
divestiture of various other businesses led to special charges
totaling €86 million; in 2010, we posted special income of
€31 million.

Special charges for restructuring measures amounted to
€181 million in 2011, compared with €100 million in the previous
year.

Integration costs of €240 million were almost exclusively
related to the Cognis integration. In 2010, costs were incurred
for the integration of both Ciba and Cognis.

Other items resulted in special income of €53 million, com-
pared with special charges of €146 million in the previous year.
This improvement was in part due to the repeal of the fine
imposed by the European Union on the former Ciba in 2009 as
well as to income from the settlement of legal disputes in the
United States.

Financial result and net income

The financial result was €384 million, significantly above the pre-
vious year’s value of minus €388 million. This was primarily due
to the special item of €887 million in income from participations
that resulted from the sale of our stake in K+S Aktiengesell-
schaft. The overall financial result included special items of
€829 million. Special items in income before taxes and minor-
ity interests amounted to €968 million.

Income from operations

— Earnings rise compared with the previous year despite
months-long suspension of oil production in Libya

— Special income results from transfer of styrenics business
to the Styrolution joint venture

— High premium earned on cost of capital

Special items (million €)

2011 2010
Integration costs (240) (162)
Restructuring measures (181) (100)
Divestitures 507 31
Other charges and income 53 (146)
Total reported in EBIT 139 377)
Special items reported in financial result 829 -

Total reported in income before taxes 968 377)
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At minus €574 million, the interest result improved compared
with the previous year. Other financial expenses and income
improved to minus €26 million.

Income before taxes and minority interests increased
significantly from €7,373 million to €8,970 million. Return on
assets amounted to 16.1%, compared with 14.7% in the
previous year.

Despite the strong improvement in income before taxes
and minority interests, income taxes increased only slightly, by
€68 million to €2,367 million. The tax rate therefore decreased
significantly, from 31.2% to 26.4%. This was mostly due to the
months-long suspension of oil production in Libya, which is
heavily taxed. At €439 million, non-compensable income taxes
for oil production in 2011 were €544 million below the level of
the previous year. Furthermore, gains from the sale of our shares
in K+S Aktiengesellschaft were predominantly tax-free.

Income before minority interests improved by €1,529 mil-
lion to €6,603 million. Minority interests decreased from €517 mil-
lion to €415 million. Declines were posted especially at Winters-
hall AG following the months-long suspension of production in
Libya as well as at BASF PETRONAS Chemicals Sdn. Bhd. in
Malaysia. Net income grew by €1,631 million to €6,188 million.
Earnings per share thus rose from €4.96 to €6.74.

-+ For more on the tax rate, see the Notes on page 169
-+ For more on the accounting methods, see the Notes on page 148

Cash flow

At €7,105 million, cash flow from operating activities in 2011
exceeded the level of the previous year by €645 million. Net
income contributed significantly to this. In addition to higher
price levels, the expansion of our business also led to a rise in
receivables and inventories, thus increasing the funds tied down
in net working capital.

Payments related to property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets were €862 million above the previous year’s
level. Free cash flow was therefore €217 million lower than in the
previous year and amounted to €3,695 million.

The business year at BASF
Business review BASF Group
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Adjusted earnings per share
Earnings per share adjusted for special items and the amortiza-
tion of intangible assets is a key ratio that offers long-term com-
parability and is more suitable for predicting the company’s
future profitability.

In 2011, adjusted earnings per share amounted to €6.26
compared with €5.73 in the previous year.

Adjusted earnings per share (million €)

2011 2010
Income before taxes and minority interests 8,970 7,373
Special items (968) 377
Amortization of intangible assets 789 703
Amortization of intangible assets contained in the
special items 97) (73)
Adjusted income before taxes and minority interests 8,694 8,380
Adjusted income taxes (2,513) (2,596)
Adjusted income before minority interests 6,181 5,784
Adjusted minority interests (432) (523)
Adjusted net income 5,749 5,261

Weighted average number of

outstanding shares (in thousands) 918,479 918,479

Adjusted earnings per share ({3] 6.26 5.73

Adjusted income before taxes and minority interests, adjusted
net income and adjusted earnings per share are key ratios that
are not defined under International Financial Reporting Stan-
dards (IFRS). They should therefore be viewed as supplemen-
tary information.

-+ For more information on the earnings per share under IFRS, see the
Notes on page 166

Financial result and net income

- Financial result improves significantly, special income
from sale of shares in K+S Aktiengesellschaft

- Income taxes increase only slightly, despite
strong improvement in earnings before taxes
and minority interests

— Months-long suspension of oil production in Libya
and predominantly tax-free gains from sale of shares in
K+S Aktiengesellschaft lead to decline in tax rate

Earnings per share and cash flow

— Earnings per share rise to €6.74

— Adjusted earnings per share increase by €0.53

— At €7,105 million, cash provided by operating activities
once again higher compared with previous year

— Free cash flow below previous year’s level due to higher
expenditures for property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets
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Consolidated balance sheets

Assets

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

Million € % Million € %
Intangible assets 11,919 19.5 12,245 20.6
Property, plant and equipment 17,966 29.4 17,241 29.0
Investments accounted for using the equity method 1,852 3.0 1,328 2.2
Other financial assets 848 1.4 1,953 3.3
Deferred taxes 941 1.5 1,112 1.9
Other receivables and miscellaneous long-term assets 561 0.9 653 1.1
Long-term assets 34,087 55.7 34,532 58.1
Inventories 10,059 16.5 8,688 14.7
Accounts receivable, trade 10,886 17.8 10,167 171
Other receivables and miscellaneous short-term assets 3,781 6.2 3,883 6.6
Marketable securities 19 . 16
Cash and cash equivalents 2,048 3.3 1,493 2.5
Assets of disposal groups 295 0.5 614 1.0
Short-term assets 27,088 44.3 24,861 41.9
Total assets 61,175 100.0 59,393 100.0
Equity and liabilities

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

Million € % Million € %
Subscribed capital 4,379 7.2 4,392 7.4
Retained earnings 19,446 31.8 15,817 26.6
Other comprehensive income 314 0.5 1,195 2.0
Minority interests 1,246 2.0 1,253 241
Equity 25,385 41.5 22,657 38.1
Provisions for pensions and similar obligations 3,189 52 2,778 4.7
Other provisions 3,335 55 3,352 5.6
Deferred taxes 2,628 4.3 2,467 4.2
Financial indebtedness 9,019 14.7 11,670 19.6
Other liabilities 1,142 1.9 901 1.6
Long-term liabilities 19,313 31.6 21,168 35.7
Accounts payable, trade 5,121 8.4 4,738 8.0
Provisions 3,210 5.2 3,324 5.6
Tax liabilities 1,038 1.7 1,140 1.9
Financial indebtedness 3,985 6.5 3,369 5.7
Other liabilities 3,036 5.0 2,802 4.7
Liabilities of disposal groups 87 0.1 195 0.3
Short-term liabilities 16,477 26.9 15,568 26.2

Total equity and liabilities 61,175 100.0 59,393 100.0
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Compared with the previous year, total assets rose by
€1,782 million to €61,175 million.

Assets

Long-term assets were reduced by €445 million to €34,087 mil-
lion, particularly due to the sale of our shares in K+S Aktien-
gesellschaft. This development was only partly offset by the
inclusion of our share in the Styrolution joint venture.

Intangible assets decreased as a result of impairments and
scheduled amortization; as of December 31, 2011, intangible
assets accounted for 19.5% of total assets (2010: 20.6%).
Additions to property, plant and equipment exceeded depreci-
ation and amortization. Thus as a percentage of total assets,
property, plant and equipment increased slightly compared with
the previous year, comprising 29.4% of total assets (2010:
29.0%).

The value of investments accounted for using the equity
method increased in 2011. This development was mainly a result
of the addition of our share in the Styrolution joint venture.

Other financial assets decreased significantly year-on-year
following the sale of our shares in K+S Aktiengesellschaft.

The rise in short-term assets, in particular inventories and
trade accounts receivable, is attributable to the expansion of
our business volume as well as higher prices. Cash and cash
equivalents grew by €555 million compared with the previous
year. The disposal group created for the styrenics business in
2010 was dissolved in October 2011 upon the transfer of these
activities to the Styrolution joint venture. The disposal group
established for our fertilizer business in 2011 contained assets
of €295 million.

Equity and liabilities

Equity once again rose sharply compared with the previous year,
predominantly thanks to net income, which, at €6,188 million,
was significantly higher than the dividend payments. This devel-
opment was partially countered by effects recognized directly
in equity: Upon the sale of the shares in K+S Aktiengesellschaft,
the changes in fair value amounting to around €1 billion, which

The business year at BASF
Consolidated balance sheets

BASF Report 2011

had been accumulated directly in equity, were derecognized.
Actuarial losses from pension obligations reduced equity by
€582 million. The equity ratio improved to 41.5% (2010:
38.1%).

Long-term liabilities decreased by €1,855 million. While
long-term financial indebtedness was reduced by €2,651 mil-
lion, provisions for pension obligations increased mainly as a
result of lower discount rates.

Net debt (million €)

Dec. 31, 2011 Dec. 31, 2010
Cash and cash equivalents 2,048 1,493
Financial indebtedness 13,004 15,039
Net debt 10,956 13,546

Short-term liabilities increased compared with the previous year,
primarily on account of short-term financial indebtedness, which
rose by €616 million. This was mostly because bonds due
in 2012 with a value of around €2.9 billion were reclassified from
long-term financial indebtedness. In 2011, bonds amounting to
around €1.2 billion were repaid and the use of the com-
mercial paper program was scaled back. Overall, financial
indebtedness decreased by €2,035 million; net debt declined
by €2,590 million.

Overall, trade accounts payable, short-term provisions and
other liabilities were at the level of the previous year.

-+ For more on the composition and development of individual balance
sheet items, see the Notes from page 172 onward

- For more on the development of the balance sheet, see the
Ten-Year Summary from page 221 onward

-+ For more on the fertilizer business disposal group, see the Notes
on page 161

Assets

— Total assets slightly increase

— Decline in long-term assets, due in particular to the
sale of shares in K+S Aktiengesellschaft

— Rise in inventories and trade accounts receivable due to
expansion of business volume and higher price levels

Equity and liabilities

— Equity increases sharply due to high net income
— Long-term liabilities decline
— Net debt significantly reduced
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Liquidity and capital resources

The business year at BASF
Liquidity and capital resources

Management’s Analysis

Value-based financial management, high cash flow

Our value-based financing principles are aimed at secur-
ing liquidity at all times, limiting the risks associated with
financing and optimizing our cost of capital. We prefer-
ably meet our financing needs on international capital
markets.

Financing policy and credit ratings

We continue to aim for at least a solid A rating, which allows us
unrestricted access to money and capital markets. Our financ-
ing measures are aligned with our operative business planning
as well as the company’s strategic direction and also ensure the
financial flexibility to take advantage of strategic options.

Corporate bonds form the basis of our medium- to long-
term debt financing. These are issued in euros and other curren-
cies with different maturities to ensure a balanced maturity pro-
file and diverse range of investors, and to optimize our debt
capital financing conditions.

For short-term financing we use our well-established
commercial paper program, which has an issuing volume of up
to $12.5 billion. As back-up for the commercial paper program,
we have access to committed, broadly syndicated credit lines:
By signing a credit line of €3 billion expiring in 2016 to replace a
credit line of $3.75 billion expiring in 2012, we were able to
improve both our maturity profile and creditor structure. An
additional credit line of $2.25 billion expiring in 2014 remains
unchanged.

Maturities of financial indebtedness (million €)

2017 and beyond 1,767
2016 1,541
2015 2,234
2014 1,964
2013 1,513
2012 3,985

None of the credit lines were, or are currently being tapped.
BASF’s external financing is therefore largely independent of
short-term fluctuations in the credit markets.

Off-balance-sheet financing tools, such as leasing, are of
minimal importance for BASF. BASF Group’s most important
financial contracts contain no side agreements with regard to
specific financial ratios (financial covenants). We are also not
obligated to maintain a particular rating.

-+ For more on the financing tools used, see the Notes from page 191
onward

On May 10, 2011, Standard & Poor’s raised its long-term rating
for BASF by one notch from “A” to “A+,” maintaining a stable out-
look. Moody'’s last confirmed BASF’s A1 long-term rating on
December 6, 2011, and rated the outlook as stable. BASF’s
short-term ratings were confirmed by both agencies. With
“A+/A-1 outlook stable” from rating agency Standard & Poor’s
and “A1/P-1 outlook stable” from Moody’s, BASF has good
credit ratings, also compared with its competitors in the chem-
ical industry.

Financing instruments (million €)

T Bank loans' 2,704

2 Eurobonds 8,810 €1 3!004
—_ million

3 Other bonds 1,490

"Including promissory notes

Financing principles

— Value-based financing principles to secure liquidity at all
times, limit financial risks and optimize cost of capital

— Balanced maturity profile and diverse range of investors

— BASF’s external financing is largely independent of
short-term fluctuations in the credit markets thanks to
good credit ratings

Consolidated statements of cash flows

— High cash flow from operating activities

— Net working capital increases by €906 million, mostly
as a result of high prices

— Free cash flow of €3,695 million

— Payments related to property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets of €3,410 million

— Net debt reduced by €2,590 million compared
with the previous year

39
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Financial management in the BASF Group is centralized and
supported by regional finance units. To minimize risks and
exploit internal optimization potential within the Group,
we bundle the financing, financial investments an